
  
 

Board of Directors Meeting of the  

Central Midlands Council of Governments  

Thursday, August 22, 2019  12:00 p.m.  CMCOG Conference Room 

OVERALL AGENDA  

A
C

T
IO

N
 

 

A. Call to Order and Introductions  Steve MacDougall, 

Chairperson 

1. Pledge of Allegiance  

2. Determination of Quorum   

3. Approve Order and Contents of the Overall Agenda  

4. Introduction of Guests Guillermo Espinosa     

5. Introduction of New Board Members 

 Senator Mike Fanning, District 17 (Chester, Fairfield and York) 

 Representative  Rick Martin, Newberry County Delegation) 

 

Steve MacDougall 

6. Invocation   

  

B. Consent Agenda  

1. Approval of the June 27, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes (Enclosure 1)  

2. Quarterly Financial Statement (Enclosure 2)  

3. FY 2020 & 2021 Unified Planning Work Program (Enclosure 3)  

4. FY 2020 & 2021 Rural Planning Work Program (Enclosure 4)  

5. 2016 – 2022 TIP Amendment – Section 5310 Projects (Enclosure 5)  

6. 2016 – 2022 TIP Amendment – FTA Programs and Apportionments (Enclosure 6)  

  

C. Regular Agenda  

1. 2040 LRTP Amendment – SCDOT Feasibility Report (Enclosure 7) Betsy McCall 

   

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

D. Announcements / Committee or Staff Reports / Correspondences   

1. SCDOT Road Show – Gas Tax Funds Report Brent Rewis 

2. SCDOT Long Range Statewide Multimodal Transportation Plan (MTP/MetroQuest Survey) Brent Rewis 

3. Executive Director’s Report  (Enclosure 8) Ben Mauldin 

4. Census 2020 Complete Count Committee Training (Enclosure 9) Ben Mauldin 

5. CMCOG FY 2020-2021 Committee Chair Assignments (Enclosure 10) Steve MacDougall 

   

 E. Old/New Business  

 F. Other Business  

 G. Adjourn  

REMINDER: The next CMCOG Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, September 26, 2019 in the COG Conference Room 

Note: Full Agenda packets can be found on the CMCOG website at www.cmcog.org. 

 

 

http://www.cmcog.org/


 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting of the  

Central Midlands Council of Governments  

Thursday, June 27, 2019  12:00 p.m.  CMCOG Conference Room 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Vina Abrams, Newberry County 

John Andoh, The Comet 

Charles Appleby, Richland County 

Jimmy Bales, Richland County Leg. Delegate 

John Baxter, Richland County 

Larry Brigham, Lexington County Council 

Susan Brill, Richland County 

Wanda Carnes, Fairfield County 

Scott Cain, Newberry County Council 

John Carrigg, Lexington County 

Kathu Condom, Town of Irmo Council 

Smokey Davis, Lexington County 

Joyce Dickerson, Richland County Council 

Julie Ann Dixon, Richland County 

Doug Fabel, Richland County 

Roger Gaddy, Town of Winnsboro Mayor 

Olin Gambrell, Batesburg-Leesville 

Malcolm Gordge, Blythewood Town Council 

William Liedinger, City of Columbia 

Robert Liming, City of Columbia 

Paul Livingston, Richland County Council 

Steve MacDougall, Town of Lexington Mayor 

Yvonne McBride, Richland County Council 

Edward McDowell, City of Columbia 

Walt McLeod, Newberry County 

Joe Mergo, Lexington County Administrator 

Dahli Myers, Richland County Council 

Chakisse Newton, Richland County Council 

Jeffery Salters, Lexington County 

Charles Simpkins, Lexington County 

Debbie Summers, Lexington County Council 

Cornelius Robinson, Fairfield County Council 

Scott Whetstone, Lexington County Council 

Chris Wooten, Lexington County  

 

 

 

 

 

GUESTS PRESENT:  

Holand Leger - Lexington County Planning Director 

Jessie Law - SCDOT 

Darren Ledbetter - SCDOT 

Kenny Larimore - SCDOT 

Joey McEntire - SCDOT 

Patrick Tyndall - AECOM 

Brian Sullivan - Lost Art Communications 

Michelle Ransom - The COMET 

Donna Peeler - Joint Municipal Water and Sewer 

Commission 

Yolanda Morris - FHWA 

Yvette Rowland - Senator Lindsey Graham's Midlands 

Regional Director 

 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Roland Bart, Chief Transportation Planner 

Jennifer Brewton, AAA Director 

Guillermo Espinosa, Senior Planner 

Jessica Foster, Operations Coordinator 

Chanell Jackson, Finance Director 

Anna Harmon, Ombudsman Director 

Jason Kent, GIS Manager 

Ben Mauldin, Executive Director  

Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive 

Director/Transportation Director 

 

 

 

 

ENCLOSURE 1 



A. CALL TO ORDER  

 

Chairperson Joyce Dickerson called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. on June 27, 2019.  

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

2. Determination of Quorum  

 

Chairperson Dickerson declared the presence of a quorum 

 

3. Approve Order and Contents of the Overall Agenda  

 

4. Introduction of Guests  

 

Guillermo Espinosa introduced the guests at today’s meeting. They are listed on the first page.  

 

5. Invocation  

 

John Carrigg gave the Invocation. 

 

 

B. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of the May 23, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes, approved 

2. 2016 – 2022 TIP Amendment-State Apportionment,  approved 

 

MOTION, approved  

Julie Ann Dixon moved, seconded by Smokey Davis, to approve the consent agenda. The motion was approved 

unanimously. 

 

 

C. Regular Agenda 

 

C1. CMCOG FY 2019 – 2020 Budget and Work Program 

  

Ben Mauldin provided an overview of the budget planning process. The total recommended budget is $13,678,241, 

which includes pass-through funds.  

 

MOTION, approved  

Steve MacDougall moved, seconded Scott Cain to approve the FY 2019 – 2020 Budget and Work Program. The 

motion was approved unanimously. 

 

C2. Blythewood Traffic Improvement Area Plan 

 

Reginald Simmons requested approval to adopt the Blythewood Traffic Improvement Area Plan.  Patrick Tyndall of 

AECOM was introduced and provided an overview of the plan.  Mr. Tyndall noted that by recognizing the rapid 

growth in the area and the increasing traffic congestion and safety issues, the Central Midlands Council of 

Governments (COG) contracted AECOM to conduct this traffic improvement area plan by taking a holistic approach 

at growth and traffic issues in the area over the next 20 years. AECOM studied the entire Blythewood area and not 

just the official town limits as much of the growth surrounding Blythewood will have a huge influence on traffic 

within the town. Therefore, rather than focusing on one particular area or intersection, this study seeks to understand 



the existing and future growth patterns, in the Blythewood area, and to provide sequential recommendations on 

improvements that should be considered over the next 20 years. 

 

Mr. Tyndall showed a brief video about the study.  A brief discussion took place.  

 

Malcolm Gordge moved, seconded Julie Ann Dixon, to approve the adoption the Blythewood Traffic 

Improvement Area Plan. The motion was approved unanimously. 

 

C3. Video Production Services for Training Videos 

  

Reginald Simmons requested approval to accept the Video Production Services for Training Videos.  CMCOG in 

coordination and collaboration with the Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority (CMRTA or The COMET) 

selected and retained the Lost Art Communications team to develop a series of videos to assist prospective riders 

when considering public transit options. Some riders who rely on public transit are those with disabilities and seniors, 

thus the videos have been crafted in such a way as to help those with barriers feel more at ease when utilizing public 

transit. Additionally, it is the intent of the COMET to share these videos with staff as a training tool. The COMET will 

host these videos on the www.CatchTheCOMET.org website, promote them as marketing tools, and will also use 

them as tools during training sessions. The videos used the COMET’s equipment and staff to the greatest extent 

possible, with professional and local amateur talent as needed. Locations were jointly selected by the COMET and the 

Lost Art Communications team. All video and sound, work product or otherwise, created for this project is the 

property of CMCOG and the COMET. 

 

Mr. Simmons showed a draft version of one of the training videos.  A brief discussion took place. 

 

John Andoh moved, seconded Paul Livingston, to approve the acceptance of the Video Production Services for 

Training Videos.  The motion was approved unanimously. 

 

C4. FY 2020 & 2021 UPWP and RPWP 

 

Reginald Simmons requested approval to adopt the FY 2020 and 2021 UPWP and RPWP.  The FY 2020 & 2021 

COATS Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is based on the COATS’s 2040 Long-Range Transportation Plan, 

which was updated and approved by the Policy Committee on September 24, 2015. Emphasis has been placed on 

developing a program which can be reasonably accomplished with available staff and consultant resources and which 

is consistent with the priorities of the COATS area. This FY 2020 & 2021 UPWP emphasizes activities that promote 

the implementation of the existing plan. The major projects to be completed in this two-year timeframe include: 

 

 Regional Resiliency Plan 

 Regional Long-Range Transportation Plan and Travel Demand Model Update 

 Regional Congestion Management Plan 

 Saluda Greenway Feasibility Study 

 Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan Update 

 Short Range Transit Plan, Origin, Destination, and Demographic Survey, & Comprehensive Operational 

Analysis 

 Regional Bike Share Feasibility Study 

 

The FY 2020 & 2021 CMCOG Rural Planning Work Program (RPWP) is based on the CMCOG’s 2035 Rural Long-

Range Transportation Plan (RLRTP) and the draft 2040 RLRTP. Emphasis has been placed on developing a program 

which can be reasonably accomplished with available staff and consultant resources and which is consistent with the 



priorities of the CMCOG area. This FY 2020 & 2021 RPWP emphasizes activities that will promote the 

implementation of both plans. The major projects to be completed in this two-year timeframe include: 

 

 Regional Resiliency Plan 

 Regional Long-Range Transportation Plan and Travel Demand Model Update 

 Regional Congestion Management Plan 

 Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan Update 

 Rural Planning Projects 

 

Steve MacDougall moved, seconded Malcolm Gordge, to approve the FY 2020 & 2021 UPWP & RPWP. The 

motion was approved unanimously. 

 

 

D. Announcements 

 

D1. Executive Director’s Report 

  

     Ben Mauldin gave the following report: 

 

1. Richland County Ag & Art Tour will be held June 29th and 30th.  

 

D2. Recognition of the Board Chair and Committee Chairpersons 

 

Chairperson Joyce Dickerson recognized and thanked Julie Ann Dixon for her service and time as the RADAC 

Chairperson. 

 

Ben Mauldin recognized Chairperson Joyce Dickerson for her service, time, leadership and dedication as the CMCOG 

Board Chairperson 

 

D3. Introduction of New Chair 

  

 Chairperson Joyce Dickerson introduced Mayor Steve MacDougall and the new CMCOG Board Chair. 

 

E. OLD / NEW BUSINESS 

  

 No old/new business was brought forth.   

 

 

F. OTHER BUSINESS  

 

No other business was brought forth.  

 

 

G.  ADJOURN  

 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 1:03 p.m.  

 

 

 



 

The Board of Directors of the Central Midlands Council of Governments approved these minutes at its August 22, 2019 

meeting.  

 

 

__________________________________    _________________________________ 

Benjamin J. Mauldin, Secretary-Treasurer    Joyce Dickerson, Chairperson    



bmauldin
Typewritten Text
Enclosure 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:   All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 
 
DATE:   June 27, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2020 – 2021 UPWP (Full document is available for download) 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
The Central Midlands Council of Governments staff will request approval to adopt the FY 2020 – 2021 UPWP.  
Please be advised that the draft final report is available on our website for your review. 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
The 2020 – 2021 COATS Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is based on the COATS’s 2040 Long-Range 
Transportation Plan, which was updated and approved by the Policy Committee on September 24, 2015. Emphasis 
has been placed on developing a program which can be reasonably accomplished with available staff and 
consultant resources and which is consistent with the priorities of the COATS area. This 2020 – 2021 UPWP 
emphasizes activities that promote the implementation of the existing plan.  The major projects to be completed in 
this two year timeframe include: 
 
 
Regional Resiliency Plan 
 
This project consists of developing a plan that will provide best practices and strategies that will reduce the 
vulnerability of the existing transportation infrastructure to natural disasters. 
 
Consultant:    TBA 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  December 2020 
 
 
 
Regional Long-Range Transportation Plan and Travel Demand Model Update 
 
This project consists of updating our Long-Range Transportation Plan and Travel Demand Model using state-of-
the-practice techniques to forecast needs in our transportation system. 
 
Consultant:    TBA 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  September 2020 
 
 
 
 
E:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2019 Board Meetings\6-27-19\Enclosure 6 - FY 2020 - 2021 UPWP Projects.doc 
 
 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 � (803) 376-5390 � FAX (803) 376-5394 � Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

Approved by the CMCOG Board/MPO 
Policy Committee on June 27th       
 
Public comment period ended on June 
28th     
    
No Public Comments Received 



F:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2019 Board Meetings\8-22-19\Consent\FY 2020 - 2021 UPWP Projects.doc 

 
 
 
 
Regional Congestion Management Plan 
 
This project consists of updating our congestion management plan using state-of-the-practice techniques to 
develop mitigation strategies that will reduce congestion in our transportation system. 
 
Consultant:    TBA 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  September 2020 
 
 
 
Saluda Greenway Feasibility Study 
 
This project consists of conducting a feasibility and environment analysis of the lower Saluda Greenway. 
 
Consultant:    TBA 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  March 2020 
 
 
 
Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan Update 
 
This project consists of updating our Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan that will identify the 
transportation needs of individuals with disabilities, older adults, and people with low incomes, provide strategies 
for meeting these needs, and prioritize transportation services for funding and implementation. 
 
Consultant:    RLS & Associates 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  June 2020 
 
 
 
Short Range Transit Plan, Origin, Destination, and Demographic Survey, & Comprehensive Operational 
Analysis 
 
This project consists of developing a transit development plan that will improve the efficiency of the current 
transit system and provide a regional outlook for the future transit system. 
 
Consultant:    TBA 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  August 2020 
 
 
 
Regional Bike Share Feasibility Study 
 
This project consists of developing a bike share implementation plan that will work in concert and assist in the 
implementation of the bike and pedestrian master plans that have been developed by CMCOG. 
 
Consultant:    TBA 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  June 2020 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:   All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 
 
DATE:   June 27, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2020 – 2021 RPWP (Full document is available for download) 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
The Central Midlands Council of Governments staff will request approval to adopt the FY 2020 – 2021 RPWP.  
Please be advised that the draft final report is available on our website for your review. 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
The 2020 – 2021 CMCOG Rural Planning Work Program (RPWP) is based on the CMCOG’s 2035 Long-Range 
Transportation Plan (LRTP) and the draft 2040 LRTP.  Emphasis has been placed on developing a program which 
can be reasonably accomplished with available staff and consultant resources and which is consistent with the 
priorities of the CMCOG area. This 2020 – 2021 RPWP emphasizes activities that will promote the 
implementation of both plans.  The major projects to be completed in this two year timeframe include: 
 
 
Regional Resiliency Plan 
 
This project consists of developing a plan that will provide best practices and strategies that will reduce the 
vulnerability of the existing transportation infrastructure to natural disasters. 
 
Consultant:    TBA 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  December 2020 
 
 
 
Regional Long-Range Transportation Plan and Travel Demand Model Update 
 
This project consists of updating our Long-Range Transportation Plan and Travel Demand Model using state-of-
the-practice techniques to forecast needs in our transportation system. 
 
Consultant:    TBA 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  September 2020 
 
 
 
 
E:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2019 Board Meetings\6-27-19\Enclosure 6 - FY 2020 - 2021 RPWP Projects.doc 
 
 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 � (803) 376-5390 � FAX (803) 376-5394 � Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 
 

Approved by the CMCOG Board/MPO 
Policy Committee on June 27th       
 
Public comment period ended on June 
28th     
    
No Public Comments Received 



F:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2019 Board Meetings\8-22-19\Consent\FY 2020 - 2021 RPWP Projects.doc 

 
 
 
 
Regional Congestion Management Plan 
 
This project consists of updating our congestion management plan using state-of-the-practice techniques to 
develop mitigation strategies that will reduce congestion in our transportation system. 
 
Consultant:    TBA 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  September 2020 
 
 
 
Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan Update 
 
This project consists of updating our Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan that will identify the 
transportation needs of individuals with disabilities, older adults, and people with low incomes, provide strategies 
for meeting these needs, and prioritize transportation services for funding and implementation. 
 
Consultant:    RLS & Associates 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  June 2020 
 
 
 
Rural Planning Projects 
 
This project consists of assisting rural communities with planning and technical analysis that may lead to project 
and/or policy development. 
 
Consultant:    TBA 
 
Project Manager: Reginald Simmons  Estimated Completion Date:  June 2020 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:   All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 
 
DATE:   May 23, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  Section 5310 Projects 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests approval to amend the 2016 -2022 TIP and the 
Human Services Coordination Plan to add the FY 2019 Section 5310 Projects for the Large Urban Area. 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 

On June 6, 2014, the Final FTA Circular FTA C 9070.1G was published, incorporating project types, from the 
repealed New Freedom program into the new Section 5310 Program.  The vehicle projects and related equipment 
under the previous 5310 Program are now called Traditional 5310 Projects and comprise at least 55% of the 
available funding; the former New Freedom projects are called Expanded 5310 Projects and comprise up to 45% 
of available funding.   

The goal of the new 5310 Program is to improve mobility for seniors and individuals with disabilities by removing 
barriers to transportation services and expanding the transportation mobility options available.  The FTA 5310 
Program provides financial assistance for transportation services planned, designed, and carried out to meet the 
special transportation needs of seniors and individuals with disabilities.  

This program provides grant funds for capital, mobility management, and operating expenses for: 

• Public transportation projects planned, designed, and carried out to meet the special needs of seniors and 
individuals with disabilities when public transportation is insufficient, inappropriate, or unavailable; 

• Public transportation projects that exceed the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA); 

• Public transportation projects that improve access to fixed-route service and decrease reliance on 
complementary paratransit; and 

• Alternatives to public transportation projects that assist seniors and individuals with disabilities and with 
transportation. 

On April 10th, staff released a call for projects for the FFY 2017 funding cycle.  Staff will present those requests 
for inclusion in the Human Services Coordination Plan and the 2016 - 2022 TIP. 
 
F:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2019 Board Meetings\5-23-19\Enclosure 5 - Section 5310 Projects.doc 
 
 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

Approved by the CMCOG Board/MPO 
Policy Committee on May 23rd       
 
Public comment period ended on July 2nd   
    
No Public Comments Received 

















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:   All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 
 
DATE:   May 23, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  TIP Amendment - Federal Transit Administration Programs & 

Apportionments 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
The Central Midlands Council of Governments staff requests approval to add the fiscal year 2019 federal 
funding apportionments to the 2016 - 2022 TIP. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Each year CMCOG receives direct and/or indirect federal funding apportionments for the following FTA 
Programs: 
 

• Section 5307 – Urbanized Area Formula Grants 

• Section 5339 – Bus and Bus Facilities Program 

• Section 5310 – Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 
 
These programs may provide planning, administration, capital, operations, and technical assistance to various 
transit-related projects.  In order for the MPO and CMRTA (The COMET) to access these funds, the MPO 
has to include them into their TIP.  Staff will request to add the attached apportionments to the 2016 – 2022 
TIP. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
FTA Programs and Apportionments 
 
 
 
 
 
F:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2019 Board Meetings\5-23-19\Enclosure 6 - FTA Apportionments.doc 

 
 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

Approved by the CMCOG Board/MPO 
Policy Committee on June 27th       
 
Public comment period ended on July 2nd   
    
No Public Comments Received 



 

FTA PROGRAMS AND APPORTIONMENTS 

Section 5339 Program 
 
Purpose  
Provides capital funding to replace, rehabilitate and purchase buses and related equipment and to construct 
bus-related facilities. 

Eligible Recipients  
• Designated recipients and states that operate or allocate funding to fixed-route bus operators.  

• Subrecipients: public agencies or private nonprofit organizations engaged in public transportation, 
including those providing services open to a segment of the general public, as defined by age, 
disability, or low income.  

 
Eligible Activities  

• Capital projects to replace, rehabilitate and purchase buses, vans, and related equipment, and to 
construct bus-related facilities.  

 
Funding 

• FY 2019 $584,990 
 
 

Section 5307 Program 

Purpose  
This program provides grants to Urbanized Areas (UZA) for public transportation capital, planning, job access 
and reverse commute projects, as well as operating expenses in certain circumstances. These funds constitute a 
core investment in the enhancement and revitalization of public transportation systems in the nation’s 
urbanized areas, which depend on public transportation to improve mobility and reduce congestion. 

Eligible Recipients  
• FTA apportions funds to designated recipients, which then suballocate funds to state and local 

governmental authorities, including public transportation providers. 

Eligible Activities  

• Capital projects.  

• Planning.  

• Job access and reverse commute projects that provide transportation to jobs and employment 
opportunities for welfare recipients and low-income workers.  

• Operating costs in areas with fewer than 200,000 in population.  

• Operating costs, up to certain limits, for grantees in areas with populations greater than 200,000, and 
which operate a maximum of 100 buses in fixed-route service during peak hours (rail fixed guideway 
excluded).  

 
Funding 

• FY 2019 $5,154,206 
 



 

FTA PROGRAMS AND APPORTIONMENTS 

Section 5310 Program 

Purpose  
This program is intended to enhance mobility for seniors and persons with disabilities by providing funds for 
programs to serve the special needs of transit-dependent populations beyond traditional public transportation 
services and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) complementary paratransit services. 

Eligible Recipients  
• States (for all areas under 200,000 in population) and designated recipients.  

• Subrecipients: states or local government authorities, private non-profit organizations, or operators of 
public transportation that receive a grant indirectly through a recipient.  

 
Eligible Activities  

• At least 55% of program funds must be used on capital projects that are:  
o Public transportation projects planned, designed, and carried out to meet the special needs of 

seniors and individuals with disabilities when public transportation is insufficient, 
inappropriate, or unavailable.  

 

• The remaining 45% may be used for:  
o Public transportation projects that exceed the requirements of the ADA.  
o Public transportation projects that improve access to fixed-route service and decrease reliance 

by individuals with disabilities on complementary paratransit.  
o Alternatives to public transportation that assist seniors and individuals with disabilities. 

 
Funding 

• FY 2019 $459,599 

 

 





 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 

236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

 

 

 

DATE: August 15, 2019 

TO:  CMCOG Board of Directors  

FROM: Benjamin J. Mauldin, Executive Director  

SUBJECT: Executive Director’s Report  

 

Training Opportunities 
 

Census 2020 Complete Count Committee Training 

 The creation Complete Count Committees in the Central Midlands Region will 

heighten awareness of the 2020 Census, encourage the full participation of our 

residents in the counting process, and help to ensure that all residents, including 

members of disadvantaged communities, receive appropriate representation in 

government.   We are encouraging that your entity form or become part of a 

complete count committee. 

  

 Please attend or send a designated person to represent your organization and/or 

community to training on how a Complete Count Committee can improve the 

response rate of residents in your community and the Central Midlands region.   

 

 What:  Complete Count Committee Training 

When: August 23, 2019 from 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Where: CMCOG, 236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 

 

Grant Management Training 

 

Central Midlands Council of Governments and Grant Writing USA will present a 

two-day grants management workshop at the COG, September 16-17 

2019.  This class will prepare grant writers to administer government grants and 

stay in compliance with applicable regulations.  This training is recommended for 

grant recipient organizations across all disciplines is an excellent opportunity for 

our member governments’ staff to enhance performance in the areas of grant 

management.  To sign up for the class: http://grantwritingusa.com/grants-

training/grant-management-workshops/columbia-south-carolina-september-

2019.html. 

 

CMCOG may have several complimentary seats available for our member 

governments.   

 

 

ENCLOSURE 8 

http://grantwritingusa.com/grants-training/grant-management-workshops/columbia-south-carolina-september-2019.html
http://grantwritingusa.com/grants-training/grant-management-workshops/columbia-south-carolina-september-2019.html
http://grantwritingusa.com/grants-training/grant-management-workshops/columbia-south-carolina-september-2019.html


 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 

236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

 

Regional Updates 

 
COG Regional Directories  

 

 The 2019 Regional Directory was developed by CMCOG staff. It includes contact 

information for county, city and town officials and county agencies. Updates to the 

Regional Directory are made continually as we receive new information. The directory 

can be downloaded online at www.cmcog.org.  

 

Cost of Living Index      
 

 CMCOG participates in the Council for Community and Economic Research 

(C2ER) and conducts the quarterly Cost of Living survey.  This information 

provides a useful and accurate measure of living costs differences among urban 

areas.  Items on which the index is based are carefully chosen to reflect the 

different categories of consumer expenditures.   
 

Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) 

 

CMCOG staff has been working with our non-entitlement jurisdictions to develop 

applications for the Fall 2019 round of SC Department of Commerce CDBG 

funding.   On August 16, 2019 CMCOG submitted three (3) requests for 

applications, for the following projects: 

o City of Newberry – Blight Project 

o Fairfield County – Library Project / Ridgeway Branch Improvements 

o Fairfield County – Zion Hill Fortune Springs Park Neighborhood 

Revitalization Plan, Phase 1 

o The full applications are due September 16, 2019.  

o CMCOG staff is also starting to working with jurisdictions to develop 

project proposals for the Spring 2020 infrastructure cycle.  If your 

community has any infrastructure needs that might qualify for a project, 

please contact Gregory Sprouse.  Requests for applications in the Spring 

2020 cycle will be due in mid-March.   

 

http://www.cmcog.org/






















 
CMCOG OFFICERS & SPECIAL COMMITTEES — FY 2019-21        
July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2021 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE                                                                                
Staff Contact:   Ben Mauldin, Executive Director 

Chairman — Steve MacDougall, Town of Lexington 
Vice-Chairman — Scott Cain, Newberry County Council  
Immediate Past Chairman — Joyce Dickerson, Richland County Council 

Vina Abrams, Newberry County  
Todd Cullum, Lexington County Council  
Sam Davis, Columbia City Council  
Shawn Epps, City of Columbia  
Zebbie Goudelock, City of Newberry  
Paul Livingston, Richland County Council 

Walt McLeod, Newberry County 
Chakisse Newton, Richland County Council  
Elise Partin, City of Cayce  
Cornelius Robinson, Fairfield County Council  
Debbie Summers, Lexington County Council 

 

 

 

 

REGIONAL AGING & DISABILITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE OFFICERS                 
Staff Contact:  Jennifer Brewton, AAA /ADRC Director 

Chairman  — Roger Gaddy, Town of Winnsboro 
Vice-Chair — Ben Connell, Kershaw County Council 
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING ADVISORY  COMMITTEE OFFICERS                   
Staff Contact:  Gregory Sprouse, Director of Research, Planning and Development  

Chairman — Shawn Epps, City of Columbia  
Vice-Chair – Smokey Davis, Lexington County 
 
 
    

REGIONAL PLANNING & COMMUNITY  DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE     
Staff Contact:  Gregory Sprouse, Director of Research, Planning and Development                  

Chairman- Cornelius Robinson, Fairfield County Council 
Vice-Chair- Walton McLeod, Newberry County  
 
 
 

RURAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ADVISORY COMMITTEE       
Staff Contact:  Reginald Simmons,  Deputy Executive Director / Transportation Director  

Chairman-Paul Livingston, Richland County Council 
Vice-Chairman-Jason Taylor, Fairfield County  
 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION SUBCOMMITTEE                                     
Staff Contact:  Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director   / Transportation Director  

Chairwoman-Joyce Dickerson, Richland County  
Vice-Chair-John Nelson, Calhoun County 
immons, Deputy Executive Director   / Transportation Director / Transportation Director 


	Agenda_Board_8.22.19
	Board Minutes 6.27 FINAL
	Enclsoure 3 -- FY 2020 - 2021 UPWP Projects
	Enclosure 4 -- FY 2020 - 2021 RPWP Projects
	Enclosure 5
	Section 5310 Projects
	Section 5310 - Babcock Center - Request 1
	Section 5310 - Babcock Center - Request 2
	Section 5310 - Irmo Chapin Recreation Commission
	Section 5310 - The COMET

	Enclsoure 6
	FTA Apportionments
	FTA Programs

	Enclsoure 7
	Enclsoure 8
	Enclsoure 9
	Enclsoure 10



